PHILLIPS 66 PARTNERS LP Form 10-O July 27, 2018 **Table of Contents UNITED STATES** SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549 FORM 10-O (Mark One) [ X ] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2018 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 For the transition period from to Commission file number: 001-36011 Phillips 66 Partners LP (Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) Delaware 38-3899432 (State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer incorporation or organization) Identification No.) 2331 CityWest Blvd., Houston, Texas 77042 (Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code) (855) 283-9237 (Registrant's telephone number, including area code) Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. ] No [ ] Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes [X] No [ ] Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer," "smaller reporting company" and "emerging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. Large accelerated filer [X] Accelerated filer [ ] Non-accelerated filer [] Smaller reporting company [ ] Emerging growth company [ ] If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the

Exchange Act. [ ]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes [ ] No [X]
The registrant had 122,912,893 common units outstanding as of June 30, 2018.

# Table of Contents

# PHILLIPS 66 PARTNERS LP

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Part I – Financial Information	Page 1
Item 1. Financial Statements Consolidated Statement of Income Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income Consolidated Balance Sheet Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	1 1 2 3 4 5 6
Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	<u>23</u>
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	<u>36</u>
Item 4. Controls and Procedures	<u>36</u>
Part II – Other Information	<u>37</u>
Item 1. Legal Proceedings	<u>37</u>
Item 1A. Risk Factors	<u>37</u>
Item 6. Exhibits	<u>38</u>
Signatures	<u>39</u>

# Table of Contents

# PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

## Item 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Statement of Income Phillips 66 Partners LP

	Millions of Dollars			
	Three	Months	Six Mo	onths
	Ended		Ended	
	June 3	0	June 30	)
	2018	2017*	2018	2017*
Revenues and Other Income				
Operating revenues—related parties	\$244	216	493	426
Operating revenues—third parties	10	11	17	21
Equity in earnings of affiliates	100	48	198	81
Other income		2	1	11
Total revenues and other income	354	277	709	539
Costs and Expenses				
Operating and maintenance expenses	85	79	182	153
Depreciation	29	28	57	56
General and administrative expenses	16	18	32	35
Taxes other than income taxes	9	8	19	17
Interest and debt expense	29	24	59	48
Total costs and expenses	168	157	349	309
Income before income taxes	186	120	360	230
Income tax expense		1	2	1
Net income	186	119	358	229
Less: Net income attributable to Predecessors		16		29
Net income attributable to the Partnership	186	103	358	200
Less: Preferred unitholders' interest in net income attributable to the Partnership	10		19	_
Less: General partner's interest in net income attributable to the Partnership	55	37	108	69
Limited partners' interest in net income attributable to the Partnership	\$121	66	231	131
Net Income Attributable to the Partnership Per Limited Partner Unit (dollars)				
Common units—basic	\$0.99	0.61	1.89	1.21
Common units—diluted	0.94	0.61	1.80	1.21
Cash Distributions Paid Per Common Unit (dollars)	\$0.71	40.586	1.392	1.144
Weighted-Average Limited Partner Units Outstanding (thousands)				
Common units—basic				1108,300
Common units—diluted	136,00	0809,189	135,72	0108,300
*Prior-period financial information has been retrospectively adjusted for acquisit	ions of	businesse	es under	common

<sup>\*</sup>Prior-period financial information has been retrospectively adjusted for acquisitions of businesses under common control.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

## **Table of Contents**

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income Phillips 66 Partners LP

Millions of Dollars
Three
Months
Ended
June 30

Six Months
Ended
June 30

2018 2017\* 2018 2017\*

Net Income \$186119 358 229

Defined benefit plans

Plan sponsored by equity affiliate, net of tax — — — — — Other comprehensive income — — — — — — — — — — — — Comprehensive Income \$186119 358 229

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

2

<sup>\*</sup>Prior-period financial information has been retrospectively adjusted for acquisitions of businesses under common control.

# Table of Contents

3

Consolidated Balance Sheet Phillips 66 Partners LP

	Million June 30 2018	os of Dollars December 31 2017
Assets		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$151	185
Accounts receivable—related parties	83	83
Accounts receivable—third parties	6	3
Materials and supplies	13	12
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	10	9
Total current assets	263	292
Equity investments	2,104	1,932
Net properties, plants and equipment	2,948	2,918
Goodwill	185	185
Deferred rentals and other assets	6	7
Total Assets	\$5,506	5,334
	. ,	,
Liabilities		
Accounts payable—related parties	\$21	21
Accounts payable—third parties	49	39
Accrued property and other taxes	16	15
Accrued interest	36	34
Short-term debt	25	25
Deferred revenues	61	35
Other current liabilities	2	2
Total current liabilities	210	171
Long-term debt	2,921	2,920
Asset retirement obligations and accrued environmental costs	12	11
Deferred income taxes	7	5
Deferred revenues and other liabilities	23	66
Total Liabilities	3,173	3,173
Total Elabilities	3,173	3,173
Equity		
Preferred unitholders (2018 and 2017—13.819.791 units issued and outstanding)	747	746
Common unitholders—public (2018—54,152,756 units issued and outstanding; 2017—52,811	822	
units issued and outstanding)	, 2,381	2,274
Common unitholder—Phillips 66 (2018 and 2017—68,760,137 units issued and outstanding)	538	487
General partner—Phillips 66 (2018 and 2017—2,480,051 units issued and outstanding)		)(1,345
Accumulated other comprehensive loss		)(1,515 )
Total Equity	2,333	2,161
Total Liabilities and Equity	\$5,506	
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.	Ψ2,200	J,JJT
500 110105 to Consolidated I manetal otatements.		

# Table of Contents

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Phillips 66 Partners LP

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Filmips of Faturers LF			
	Doll	Months ed	
		3 2017	k
Cash Flows From Operating Activities	2010	2017	
Net income	\$358	3 229	
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities	Ψυυ	5 227	
Depreciation	57	56	
Undistributed equity earnings	(7	)(9	)
Deferred revenues and other liabilities	(43		,
Other	5	4	
Working capital adjustments	3	7	
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable	(3	)6	
Decrease (increase) in materials and supplies	(5	(1	)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable	(3	)(2	)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest	2	)(2	,
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues	30	10	
Increase (decrease) in other accruals	1	(2	)
	397	291	,
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	391	291	
Cash Flows From Investing Activities			
Restricted cash received from combination of business	_	318	
Collection of loan receivable		7	
Cash capital expenditures and investments	(234	)(188	)
Return of investment from equity affiliates	22		,
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities		)154	
The cush Frontace of (essee in) investing frontaces	(212	, 10 .	
Cash Flows From Financing Activities			
Net contributions to Phillips 66 from Predecessors	—	(151	)
Issuance of debt	—	1,103	
Repayment of debt		(1,39)	8)
Issuance of common units	67	171	
Quarterly distributions to preferred unitholders	(18	)—	
Quarterly distributions to common unitholders—public	(74	)(50	)
Quarterly distributions to common unitholder—Phillips 66	(96	)(73	)
Quarterly distributions to General Partner—Phillips 66	(98	)(60	)
Other cash contributions from Phillips 66		12	
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities	(219	)(446	)
Not Change in Coch Coch Equivalents and Destricted Coch	(24	\(1	`
Net Change in Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash	(34	2	,
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period	185 \$151		
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash at End of Period  *Prior period financial information has been retrospectively adjusted for acquisiti			0000

\*Prior-period financial information has been retrospectively adjusted for acquisitions of businesses under common control.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

# **Table of Contents**

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Phillips 66 Partners LP

Millions of Dollars Partnership

	Partne	ership					
	Unith	r <b>i€d</b> mmon o <b>lldrith</b> olders cPublic	Common Unitholder Phillips 66	General Partner Phillips 66	Accum. Other Comprehensive Loss	Net Investment– Predecessors*	_ Total
December 31, 2016	\$—	1,795	476	(704	)(1	)—	1,566
Net income attributable to Predecessors	_	_	_	_	_	29	29
Net contributions from Phillips 66—Predecesso	rs	_	_	_	_	751	751
Issuance of common units	_	171	_	_		_	171
Net income attributable to the Partnership	_	54	77	69	_	_	200
Quarterly cash distributions to unitholders and General Partner	_	(50	)(73	)(60	)—	_	(183)
Other contributions from Phillips 66	n_	_	_	17	_	_	17
June 30, 2017*	\$—	1,970	480	(678	)(1	)780	2,551
December 31, 2017	\$746	2,274	487	(1,345	)(1	)—	2,161
Cumulative effect of accounting change	_	13	17	1	_	_	31
Issuance of common units Net income attributable to the Partnership Quarterly cash distributions to	_	67	_		_	_	67
	19	101	130	108	_	_	358
	(18	)(74	)(96	)(98	)—	_	(286)
Other contributions from Phillips 66	n	_	_	2	_	_	2
June 30, 2018	\$747	2,381	538	(1,332	)(1	)—	2,333

<sup>\*</sup>Prior-period financial information has been retrospectively adjusted for acquisitions of businesses under common control.

	Preferred Units Public	Common Un Public	itsCommon Un Phillips 66	General itsPartner Units Phillips 66	Total Units
December 31, 2016	_	43,134,902	64,047,024	2,187,386	109,369,312

Units issued in public equity offerings June 30, 2017	_ _	3,323,576 46,458,478	 64,047,024		3,323,576 112,692,888
December 31, 2017	13,819,791	52,811,822	68,760,137	2,480,051	137,871,801
Units issued in public equity offerings	_	1,340,934	_	_	1,340,934
June 30, 2018	13,819,791	54,152,756	68,760,137	2,480,051	139,212,735
See Notes to Consolidated Financia	al Statements.				
5					

#### **Table of Contents**

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Phillips 66 Partners LP

#### Note 1—Business and Basis of Presentation

Unless otherwise stated or the context otherwise indicates, all references to "Phillips 66 Partners," "the Partnership," "us," "our," "we," or similar expressions refer to Phillips 66 Partners LP, including its consolidated subsidiaries. References to Phillips 66 may refer to Phillips 66 and/or its subsidiaries, depending on the context. References to our "General Partner" refer to Phillips 66 Partners GP LLC, and references to Phillips 66 PDI refer to Phillips 66 Project Development Inc., the Phillips 66 subsidiary that holds a limited partner interest in us and wholly owns our General Partner.

#### Description of the Business

We are a growth-oriented master limited partnership formed to own, operate, develop and acquire primarily fee-based crude oil, refined petroleum products and natural gas liquids (NGL) pipelines, terminals and other midstream assets. Our common units trade on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol PSXP.

Our operations consist of crude oil, refined petroleum products and NGL transportation, processing, terminaling and storage assets. We conduct our operations through both wholly owned and joint venture operations. The majority of our wholly owned assets are associated with, and are integral to the operation of, nine of Phillips 66's owned or joint venture refineries.

We primarily generate revenue by providing fee-based transportation, terminaling, processing, storage and NGL fractionation services to Phillips 66 and other customers. Our equity affiliates primarily generate revenue from transporting and terminaling NGL, refined petroleum products and crude oil. Since we do not own any of the NGL, crude oil and refined petroleum products we handle and do not engage in the trading of NGL, crude oil and refined petroleum products, we have limited direct exposure to risks associated with fluctuating commodity prices, although these risks indirectly influence our activities and results of operations over the long term.

#### **Basis of Presentation**

We have acquired assets from Phillips 66 that were considered transfers of businesses between entities under common control. This required the transactions to be accounted for as if the transfers had occurred at the beginning of the transfer period, with prior periods retrospectively adjusted to furnish comparative information. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements and related notes have been retrospectively adjusted to include the historical results and financial position of the acquired businesses prior to the effective date of each acquisition. We refer to these pre-acquisition operations as those of our "Predecessors."

The combined financial statements of our Predecessors were derived from the accounting records of Phillips 66 and reflect the combined historical results of operations, financial position and cash flows of our Predecessors as if such businesses had been combined for all periods presented.

All intercompany transactions and accounts within our Predecessors have been eliminated. The assets and liabilities of our Predecessors in these financial statements have been reflected on a historical cost basis because the transfer of the Predecessors to us occurred within the Phillips 66 consolidated group. The consolidated statement of income also includes expense allocations for certain functions performed by Phillips 66, including operational support services such as engineering and logistics and allocations of general corporate expenses related to executive oversight, accounting, treasury, tax, legal, information technology and procurement. These allocations were based primarily on the relative carrying values of properties, plants and equipment and equity-method investments, or number of terminals and pipeline miles, and secondarily on activity-based cost allocations. Our management believes the assumptions underlying the allocation of expenses from Phillips 66 are reasonable. Nevertheless, the financial results of our Predecessors may not include all of the actual expenses that would have been incurred had our Predecessors

been a stand-alone publicly traded partnership during the periods presented.

6

#### **Table of Contents**

#### Note 2—Interim Financial Information

The interim financial information presented in the financial statements included in this report is unaudited and includes all known accruals and adjustments necessary, in the opinion of management, for a fair presentation of our financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented. Unless otherwise specified, all such adjustments are of a normal and recurring nature. Certain notes and other information have been condensed or omitted from the interim financial statements included in this report. Therefore, these interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes included in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K. The results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year.

#### Note 3—Changes in Accounting Principles

Effective January 1, 2018, we adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2017-01, "Business Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a Business," which clarifies the definition of a business with the objective of adding guidance to assist in evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions of assets or businesses. The amendment provides a screen for determining when a transaction involves an acquisition of a business. If substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset, or a group of similar identifiable assets, then the screen is met and the transaction is not considered an acquisition of a business. If the screen is not met, the amendment requires that to be considered a business, the operation must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create an output. The guidance may reduce the number of future transactions accounted for as business acquisitions. At the time of adoption, this ASU had no impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2018, we adopted ASU No. 2016-01, "Financial Instruments—Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities." The majority of this ASU's provisions amend only the presentation or disclosures of financial instruments; however, one provision can affect net income. Equity investments reported under the cost method or the lower of cost or fair value method of accounting, in accordance with previous U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), are now reported at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net income. For equity investments that do not have readily determinable fair values, we elected to carry such investments at cost less impairments, if any, adjusted up or down for price changes in similar financial instruments issued by the investee, when and if observed. At the time of adoption, this ASU had no material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2018, we adopted ASU No. 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)," using the modified retrospective transition method applied to all contracts. Under the new revenue recognition guidance, recognition of revenue involves a multiple step approach including: (i) identifying the contract with the customer, (ii) identifying the separate performance obligations, (iii) determining the transaction price, (iv) allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations and (v) recognizing the revenue as the performance obligations are satisfied. Additional disclosures are required to enable users of financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. In addition, all but one of our equity-method investees adopted ASU No. 2014-09 as of January 1, 2018. The remaining equity method investee will adopt this ASU in 2019.

We recorded a noncash cumulative effect adjustment of \$31 million to increase the opening balance of our equity as of January 1, 2018. This adjustment reflected amounts recorded by us and our equity-method investees related to the acceleration of revenue recognition on certain minimum volume commitment contracts with recovery provisions.

Certain agreements for transportation, terminaling and fractionation services with Phillips 66 are considered operating leases under FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 840, "Leases." We identified the separate lease and service elements of our revenue under these operating leases and applied ASU No. 2014-09 only to the service element, while the lease element continued to be accounted for under ASC 840. See Note 9—Operating Revenues, for additional information.

7

#### **Table of Contents**

Note 4—Acquisitions

#### Gray Oak Pipeline Project Acquisition

On April 20, 2018, we entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement with Phillips 66 PDI to acquire its 100 percent interest in Gray Oak Holdings LLC, a limited liability company that, at that time, owned a 100 percent interest in Gray Oak Pipeline, LLC (Gray Oak LLC), an entity formed to develop and construct the Gray Oak Pipeline system. Under common control accounting, we considered the cash consideration paid of approximately \$3 million to be a reimbursement of Phillips 66 PDI's previously incurred costs, and expensed this amount to "General and administrative expenses" in the second quarter of 2018. Another party has the right, but not the obligation, to acquire up to a 35 percent interest in Gray Oak Holdings LLC. Subject to certain conditions, the option expires on November 30, 2018. At June 30, 2018, the option had not been exercised. See Note 5—Equity Investments, for additional information on Gray Oak LLC, including our variable interest entity assessment.

### Bakken Pipeline/MSLP Acquisition

In September 2017, we entered into a Contribution, Conveyance and Assumption Agreement with subsidiaries of Phillips 66 to acquire a 25 percent interest in each of Dakota Access, LLC (Dakota Access) and Energy Transfer Crude Oil Company, LLC (ETCO), together referred to as the Bakken Pipeline, and a 100 percent interest in Merey Sweeny, L.P. (MSLP). Collectively, the assets acquired in the acquisition are referred to as the Bakken Pipeline/MSLP Acquisition. We paid Phillips 66 total consideration of \$1.65 billion, consisting of \$372 million in cash, the assumption of \$588 million of promissory notes payable to Phillips 66 and a \$450 million term loan under which Phillips 66 was the obligor, and the issuance of 4,713,113 common units to Phillips 66 PDI and 292,665 general partner units to our General Partner to maintain its 2 percent general partner interest. The Bakken Pipeline/MSLP Acquisition closed in October 2017.

In connection with the Bakken Pipeline/MSLP Acquisition, we entered into commercial agreements with Phillips 66 and amended the omnibus and operational services agreements with Phillips 66. See Note 13—Related Party Transactions for additional information on our commercial and other agreements with Phillips 66. Pursuant to the tolling services agreement entered into with Phillips 66 and related to MSLP operations, we received \$53 million from Phillips 66 for the prepayment of services related to MSLP's next scheduled maintenance turnaround, which was recorded as deferred revenue in our consolidated balance sheet as of the acquisition date.

#### **Common Control Transactions**

The Bakken Pipeline/MSLP Acquisition was considered a transfer of businesses between entities under common control, and therefore the related acquired assets were transferred at historical carrying value. The aggregate net book value of the underlying acquired assets in the Bakken Pipeline/MSLP Acquisition, at the time of acquisition, was \$729 million. Because the Bakken Pipeline/MSLP Acquisition was a common control transaction in which we acquired a business, our historical financial statements were retrospectively adjusted to reflect the results of operations, financial position, and cash flows of the acquired assets as if we owned the acquired assets for the period from February 1, 2017, through October 5, 2017. For periods prior to February 1, 2017, both the Bakken Pipeline and MSLP investments were accounted for under the equity method of accounting by Phillips 66 and, thus, were not subject to retrospective adjustments.

The following tables present our results of operations and cash flows giving effect to the Bakken Pipeline/MSLP Acquisition. The second column in both tables presents the retrospective adjustments made to our historical financial information for the acquired assets prior to the effective date of the acquisition. The third column in both tables presents our consolidated financial information as retrospectively adjusted.

# Table of Contents

		ions of Dollars e Months Ended June 30, 2017 ips	
Consolidated Statement of Income	Parti LP (As	ners Acquired Bakken Pipeline/MSLP Predecessor iously	Consolidated Results
	repo	•	
Revenues and Other Income	1 <b>c</b> po		
Operating revenues—related parties	\$186	5 30	216
Operating revenues—third parties	11	<del>_</del>	11
Equity in earnings of affiliates	37	11	48
Other income	_	2	2
Total revenues and other income	234	43	277
Costs and Expenses			
Operating and maintenance expenses	57	22	79
Depreciation	26	2	28
General and administrative expenses	16	2	18
Taxes other than income taxes	7	1	8
Interest and debt expense	24	_	24
Total costs and expenses	130	27	157
Income before income taxes	104	16	120
Income tax expense	1	_	1
Net income	103	16	119
Less: Net income attributable to Predecessors		16	16
Net income attributable to the Partnership	103	_	103
Less: General partner's interest in net income attributable t the Partnership	to <sub>37</sub>	_	37
Limited partners' interest in net income attributable to the Partnership	\$66	_	66
9			

# Table of Contents

	Six M Phill 66	•	
Consolidated Statement of Income	Partr LP (As	ers Acquired Bakken Pipeline/MSLP Predecessor	Consolidated Results
	previ repoi	ously rted)	
Revenues and Other Income	Терог		
Operating revenues—related parties	\$370	56	426
Operating revenues—third parties	21	_	21
Equity in earnings of affiliates	70	11	81
Other income	7	4	11
Total revenues and other income	468	71	539
Costs and Expenses			
Operating and maintenance expenses	119	34	153
Depreciation	52	4	56
General and administrative expenses	32	3	35
Taxes other than income taxes	16	1	17
Interest and debt expense	48	_	48
Total costs and expenses	267	42	309
Income before income taxes	201	29	230
Income tax expense	1	_	1
Net income	200	29	229
Less: Net income attributable to Predecessors		29	29
Net income attributable to the Partnership	200	_	200
Less: General partner's interest in net income attributable t the Partnership	o <sub>69</sub>	_	69
Limited partners' interest in net income attributable to the Partnership	\$131	_	131
10			

# Table of Contents

	Six M Phillip 66	Acquired Bakken Pipeline/MSLP Predecessor	Consoli Results	
Cash Flows From Operating Activities	<b>4.200</b>	20	220	
Net income	\$200	29	229	
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided				
by operating activities	52	4	56	
Depreciation Undistributed equity earnings	2	(11	) (9	)
Other	5	(1)	) 4	)
Working capital adjustments	3	(1	) 4	
Decrease (increase) in other current assets				
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable	6		6	
Decrease (increase) in materials and supplies	(1)	_	(1	)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other current	, ,		(1	,
assets	(1)	1	_	
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable	(2)	·	(2	)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest	1	(1	) —	,
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues	10	<del>_</del>	10	
Increase (decrease) in other accruals	(2)		(2	)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	270	21	291	,
Cash Flows From Investing Activities				
Restricted cash received from combination of business		318	318	
Collection of loan receivable		7	7	
Cash capital expenditures and investments	(128)	(60	) (188	)
Return of investment from equity affiliates	17	_	17	
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities	(111)	265	154	
Cash Flows From Financing Activities				
Net contributions to Phillips 66 from Predecessors		(151	) (151	)
Issuance of debt	1,103		1,103	`
Repayment of debt	(1,263	3 (135	) (1,398	)
Issuance of common units	171	_	171	`
Quarterly distributions to common unitholders—public	(50)	<del>_</del>	(50	)
Quarterly distributions to common unitholder—Phillips 66		· <del>-</del>	(73	)
Quarterly distributions to General Partner—Phillips 66	(60 ) 12	· <del></del>	(60 12	)
Other cash contributions from Phillips 66	(160)		) (446	`
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities	(100)	(200	) (440	)
Net Change in Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash	h(1 )	<u> </u>	(1	)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of	(- )			,
period	2	_	2	
*				

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash at End of Period \$1 — 1

#### **Table of Contents**

#### Note 5—Equity Investments

### Gray Oak Pipeline

As discussed in Note 4—Acquisitions, on April 20, 2018, we acquired Phillips 66 PDI's then 100 percent interest in Gray Oak LLC. Gray Oak LLC is developing and constructing the Gray Oak Pipeline system which, upon completion, will provide crude oil transportation from the Permian Basin and Eagle Ford to destinations in the Corpus Christi and Sweeny/Freeport markets on the Texas Gulf Coast. The pipeline is expected to be placed in service by the end of 2019.

On April 23, 2018, a co-venturer acquired a 25 percent interest in Gray Oak LLC, along with sufficient voting rights over key governance provisions such that we no longer could assert control over Gray Oak LLC. At that time, we began using the equity method of accounting for our investment in Gray Oak LLC. Gray Oak LLC is considered a variable interest entity because it does not have sufficient equity at risk to fully fund the construction of all assets required for principal operations. We have determined we are not the primary beneficiary because we and our co-venturer jointly direct the activities of the Gray Oak Pipeline that most significantly impact economic performance. At June 30, 2018, our maximum exposure to loss was \$28 million, which represented the aggregate book value of our equity investment in Gray Oak LLC. Another party has the option to acquire a 10 percent interest in Gray Oak LLC. Subject to certain conditions, the option expires on July 29, 2018. At June 30, 2018, the option had not been exercised.

#### South Texas Gateway Terminal

On April 23, 2018, we acquired a 25 percent interest in the South Texas Gateway Terminal under development by Buckeye Partners, L.P. This marine terminal will connect to the Gray Oak Pipeline in Corpus Christi, Texas, and will have an initial storage capacity of 3.4 million barrels. The terminal is expected to begin operations by the end of 2019.

South Texas Gateway Terminal LLC is considered a variable interest entity because it does not have sufficient equity at risk to fully fund the construction of all assets required for principal operations. We have determined we are not the primary beneficiary because we and our co-venturers jointly direct the activities of the terminal that most significantly impact economic performance. At June 30, 2018, our maximum exposure to loss was \$14 million, which represented the aggregate book value of our equity investment in South Texas Gateway Terminal LLC.

The following table summarizes the carrying value of our equity investments.

	Percentage Ownership		June 3	ns of Dollars ODecember 31	
	Tereoninge o winership		2018	2017	
Bakken Pipeline	25.00	%	\$609	621	
Bayou Bridge Pipeline, LLC (Bayou Bridge)	40.00		231	173	
DCP Sand Hills Pipeline, LLC (Sand Hills)	33.34		567	515	
DCP Southern Hills Pipeline, LLC (Southern Hills)	33.34		208	209	
Explorer Pipeline Company (Explorer)	21.94		121	118	
Gray Oak Pipeline, LLC (Gray Oak)	75.00		28	_	
Paradigm Pipeline LLC (Paradigm)	50.00		142	131	
Phillips 66 Partners Terminal LLC (Phillips 66 Partners Terminal)	70.00		72	53	
South Texas Gateway Terminal LLC (South Texas Gateway Terminal)	25.00		14	_	
STACK Pipeline LLC (STACK)	50.00		112	112	
Total equity investments			\$2,10	41,932	

# Table of Contents

Earnings (losses) from our equity investments were as follows:

	Thre Mon Ende	e ths ed	f Dollars Six Months Ended June 30		
	June 30 June 2018 2017 2018				
Bakken Pipeline	\$39	11	71	11	
Bayou Bridge	3	2	8	4	
Explorer	8	6	24	11	
Gray Oak	_	_	_	_	
Paradigm	2	—	4	(1	)
Phillips 66 Partners Terminal	6	1	15	3	
Sand Hills	31	20	56	37	
South Texas Gateway Terminal	_	—	_	_	
Southern Hills	9	7	16	14	
STACK	2	1	4	2	
Total equity in earnings of affiliates	\$100	)48	198	81	

# Note 6—Properties, Plants and Equipment

Our investment in properties, plants and equipment (PP&E), with the associated accumulated depreciation, was:

31

	Millions of Dollars June 30December 3		
	2018	2017	
Land	\$19	19	
Buildings and improvements	88	88	
Pipelines and related assets*	1,382	1,372	
Terminals and related assets*	691	671	
Rail racks and related assets*	137	137	
Processing and related assets*	842	837	
Caverns and related assets*	584	583	
Construction-in-progress	97	47	
Gross PP&E	3,840	3,754	
Less: Accumulated depreciation	892	836	
Net PP&E	\$2,948	2,918	

\*Assets for which we are the lessor.

#### **Table of Contents**

Note 7—Debt

	Millions of Dollars		
	June 30	31	
	2018	2017	
2.6460/ Sanian Natas dua 2020	\$200	200	
2.646% Senior Notes due 2020	\$300	300	
3.605% Senior Notes due 2025	500	500	
3.550% Senior Notes due 2026	500	500	
3.750% Senior Notes due 2028	500	500	
4.680% Senior Notes due 2045	450	450	
4.900% Senior Notes due 2046	625	625	
Tax-exempt bonds at 1.75% and 1.94% at June 30, 2018, and December 31, 2017, respectively	100	100	
Total	2,975	2,975	
Net unamortized discounts and debt issuance costs	(29	)(30	)
Total debt	2,946	2,945	
Less: Short-term debt	25	25	
Long-term debt	\$2,921	2,920	

The fair value of our fixed-rate and floating-rate debt is estimated based on observable market prices and is classified in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of our fixed-rate debt amounted to \$2,723 million and \$2,918 million at June 30, 2018, and December 31, 2017, respectively. The fair value of our floating-rate debt approximated carrying value of \$100 million at both June 30, 2018, and December 31, 2017.

### Note 8—Equity

Our initial \$250 million continuous offering of common units, or at-the-market (ATM) program, was completed during the three months ended June 30, 2018. At that time, we commenced issuing common units under our second \$250 million ATM program. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, on a settlement date basis, we had issued an aggregate of 1,152,119 and 1,340,934 common units under our ATM programs, generating net proceeds of \$58 million and \$67 million, respectively. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2017, on a settlement date basis, we had issued an aggregate of 2,578,608 and 3,323,576 common units under our ATM programs, generating net proceeds of \$131 million and \$171 million, respectively. Since inception through June 30, 2018, we had issued an aggregate of 5,059,802 common units under our ATM programs, generating net proceeds of \$259 million. The net proceeds from sales under the ATM programs are used for general partnership purposes, which may include debt repayment, acquisitions, capital expenditures and additions to working capital.

# Note 9—Operating Revenues

Revenues are primarily recognized for pipeline transportation, terminaling, storage, processing and fractionation services generated under long-term agreements. A significant portion of our revenues are derived from Phillips 66. The majority of our agreements for transportation, terminaling, storage, processing and fractionation services with Phillips 66 are considered operating leases under GAAP. As part of our adoption of ASU No. 2014-09, we applied the new revenue recognition standard only to the service element of these operating leases. The separation of the lease and service elements was based on an analysis of service-related and lease-related costs for each contract, adjusted for representative profit margins. The lease element continues to be accounted for under lease accounting standards.

#### **Table of Contents**

Revenues from fixed minimum volume commitments are recognized over the performance obligation period for stand-ready service contracts. Revenues from the variable element of these stand-ready contracts and other contracts without fixed elements are recognized based on the actual volumes transported, stored, processed and fractionated at contractual rates because the actual volumes specifically relate to our efforts to transfer the distinct services. Generally, our services are billed and payments are received on a monthly basis.

#### Disaggregated Revenues

Total operating revenues disaggregated by type of service were as follows:

Millions of Dollars Three Six Months Ended June Ended June 30, 2018

Pipelines \$111213
Terminals 38 77
Storage, processing and other revenues 105 220
Total operating revenues \$254510

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, lease revenues were \$143 million and \$287 million, respectively, and service revenues were \$111 million and \$223 million, respectively. Lease and service revenues were recorded in the "Operating revenues—related parties" and "Operating revenues—third parties" lines on our consolidated statement of income.

#### Contract-Related Assets and Liabilities

At June 30, 2018 and January 1, 2018, lease receivables were \$49 million for both periods, and service receivables were \$40 million and \$37 million, respectively.

Our contract liabilities primarily represent payments from our customers, mainly Phillips 66, for volume throughput less than the contractually required minimum throughput volumes. These deficiency payments are deferred and recognized at the earlier of the period in which our customers make up the shortfall volumes or when it is probable our customers will not make up the shortfall volumes prior to the expiration of the contractual make-up period. Our contract liabilities are included in the "Deferred revenues" and "Deferred revenues and other liabilities" lines on our consolidated balance sheet. At June 30, 2018, and January 1, 2018, total deferred revenues were \$80 million and \$93 million, respectively, of which \$9 million and \$13 million, respectively, are contract liabilities related to the service element. Service-related revenues recognized during the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, that were included in the contract liability balance at January 1, 2018, were \$5 million and \$9 million, respectively. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, there were no material differences between the amount that we recognized as revenues relating to minimum throughput deficiency payments compared to the amount that would have been recognized prior to the adoption of the new revenue recognition standard.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### **Remaining Performance Obligations**

We typically have long-term contracts with our customers, most of which have original durations of up to 15 years. The average remaining duration of these contracts is eight years. As of June 30, 2018, future revenues expected to be recognized for the fixed component of the transaction price of our remaining performance obligations from contracts with our customers with an original expected duration of greater than one year were:

	Millions
	of
	Dollars
Remainder of 2018	\$ 359
2019	699
2020	696
2021	685
2022	673
Remaining years	2,964
Total future operating revenues*	\$6,076

<sup>\*</sup>Includes \$3.4 billion of future lease revenues from agreements with Phillips 66.

For the remaining performance obligation, we applied the exemption for variable prices allocated entirely to a wholly unsatisfied performance obligation or to a wholly unsatisfied promise to transfer distinct goods or service as part of a performance obligation.

#### Note 10—Net Income Per Limited Partner Unit

Net income per limited partner unit applicable to common units is computed by dividing the limited partners' interest in net income attributable to the Partnership by the weighted-average number of common units outstanding for the period. Because we have more than one class of participating securities, we use the two-class method to calculate the net income per unit applicable to the limited partners. As of June 30, 2018, the classes of participating securities included common units, general partner units and incentive distribution rights (IDRs). For the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, our preferred units are potentially dilutive securities and were dilutive to net income per limited partner unit. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2017, basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit are the same because we did not have potentially dilutive common units outstanding.

Net income earned by the Partnership is allocated between the limited partners and the General Partner (including the General Partner's IDRs) in accordance with our partnership agreement, after giving effect to priority income allocations to the holders of the preferred units. First, earnings are allocated based on actual cash distributions declared to our unitholders, including those attributable to the General Partner's IDRs. To the extent net income attributable to the Partnership exceeds or is less than cash distributions, this difference is allocated based on the unitholders' respective ownership percentages, after consideration of any priority allocations of earnings. For the diluted net income per limited partner unit calculation, the preferred units are assumed to be converted at the beginning of the period into common limited partner units on a one-for-one basis, and the distribution formula for available cash in our partnership agreement is recalculated, using the original available cash amount increased only for the preferred distributions which would not have been paid after conversion.

When our financial statements are retrospectively adjusted after a dropdown transaction, the earnings of the acquired business, prior to the closing of the transaction, are allocated entirely to our General Partner and presented as net income (loss) attributable to Predecessors. The earnings per unit of our limited partners prior to the close of the

transaction do not change as a result of a dropdown transaction. After the closing of a dropdown transaction, the earnings of the acquired business are allocated in accordance with our partnership agreement as previously described.

16

## **Table of Contents**

	Millions of Dollars			
	Thre	e	Six	
	Mon	ths	Mo	nths
	Ended June Ended		ded	
	30		Jun	e 30
	2018	2017	201	82017
Net income attributable to the Partnership	\$186	5103	358	3 200
Less: General partner's distribution declared (including IDRs)*	57	36	108	68
Limited partners' distributions declared on preferred units*	10	_	19	
Limited partners' distribution declared on common units*	91	68	179	131
Distributions less than (more than) net income attributable to the Partnership	\$28	(1	) 52	1
*Distribution declared attributable to the indicated periods.				

	Limited Partners' Common Units	General Partner (including IDRs)	Limited Partners' Preferred Units	Tota	l
Three Months Ended June 30, 2018					
Net income attributable to the Partnership (millions)					
Distribution declared	\$ 91	57	10	158	
Distributions less than (more than) net income attributable to the Partnership	30	(2	)—	28	
Net income attributable to the Partnership (basic)	121	55	10	186	
Dilutive effect of preferred units*	7				
Net income attributable to the Partnership (diluted)	\$ 128				
Weighted-average units outstanding—basic Dilutive effect of preferred units* Weighted-average units outstanding—diluted	122,188,64 13,819,791 136,008,43				
Net income attributable to the Partnership per limited partner unit—basic (dollars)	\$ 0.99				
Net income attributable to the Partnership per limited partner unit—diluted (dollars)	0.94				
Three Months Ended June 30, 2017					
Net income attributable to the Partnership (millions)	):				
Distribution declared	\$ 68	36	_	104	
Distributions less than (more than) net income attributable to the Partnership	(2	1	_	(1	)
Net income attributable to the Partnership	\$ 66	37	_	103	

Weighted-average units outstanding—basic and dilut 0.9,189,217

Net income per limited partner unit—basic and diluted (dollars) \$ 0.61

<sup>\*</sup> The dilutive effect of preferred units assumes the reallocation of net income to the limited and general partners, including a reallocation associated with IDRs, pursuant to the available cash formula in the partnership agreement.

## **Table of Contents**

	Limited Partners' Common Units	General Partner (including IDRs)	Limited Partners' Preferred Units	Total
Six Months Ended June 30, 2018				
Net income attributable to the Partnership (millions):				
Distribution declared	\$ 179	108	19	306
Distributions less than net income attributable to the Partnership	52	_	_	52
Net income attributable to the Partnership (basic) Dilutive effect of preferred units*	231 14	108	19	358
Net income attributable to the Partnership (diluted)	\$ 245			
Weighted-average units outstanding—basic	121,900,68	33		
Dilutive effect of preferred units*	13,819,791			
Weighted-average units outstanding—diluted	135,720,47	74		
Net income attributable to the Partnership per limited partner unit—basic (dollars)	\$ 1.89			
Net income attributable to the Partnership per limited partner unit—diluted (dollars)	1.80			
Six Months Ended June 30, 2017				
Net income attributable to the Partnership (millions):				
Distribution declared	\$ 131	68	_	199
Distributions less than net income attributable to the Partnership	_	1	_	1
Net income attributable to the Partnership	\$ 131	69	_	200
Weighted-average units outstanding—basic and diluted	108,299,57	70		
Net income attributable to the Partnership per limited	\$ 1.21			

<sup>\*</sup> The dilutive effect of preferred units assumes the reallocation of net income to the limited and general partners, including a reallocation associated with IDRs, pursuant to the available cash formula in the partnership agreement.

On July 18, 2018, the Board of Directors of our General Partner declared a quarterly cash distribution of \$0.752 per common unit attributable to the second quarter of 2018. This distribution is payable August 13, 2018, to unitholders of record as of July 31, 2018.

18

partner unit—basic and dilutive (dollars)

#### **Table of Contents**

#### Note 11—Contingencies

From time to time, lawsuits involving a variety of claims that arise in the ordinary course of business are filed against us. We also may be required to remove or mitigate the effects on the environment of the placement, storage, disposal or release of certain chemical, mineral and petroleum substances at various sites. We regularly assess the need for accounting recognition or disclosure of these contingencies. In the case of all known contingencies (other than those related to income taxes), we accrue a liability when the loss is probable and the amount is reasonably estimable. If a range of amounts can be reasonably estimated and no amount within the range is a better estimate than any other amount, then the minimum of the range is accrued. We do not reduce these liabilities for potential insurance or third-party recoveries. If applicable, we accrue receivables for probable insurance or other third-party recoveries. In the case of income-tax-related contingencies, we use a cumulative probability-weighted loss accrual in cases where sustaining a tax position is less than certain.

Based on currently available information, we believe it is remote that future costs related to known contingent liability exposures will exceed current accruals by an amount that would have a material adverse impact on our consolidated financial statements. As we learn new facts concerning contingencies, we reassess our position both with respect to accrued liabilities and other potential exposures. Estimates particularly sensitive to future changes include any contingent liabilities recorded for environmental remediation, tax and legal matters. Estimated future environmental remediation costs are subject to change due to such factors as the uncertain magnitude of cleanup costs, the unknown time and extent of such remedial actions that may be required, and the determination of our liability in proportion to that of other potentially responsible parties. Estimated future costs related to tax and legal matters are subject to change as events evolve and as additional information becomes available during the administrative and litigation processes.

#### Environmental

We are subject to federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations. We record accruals for contingent environmental liabilities based on management's best estimates, using all information that is available at the time. We measure estimates and base liabilities on currently available facts, existing technology, and presently enacted laws and regulations, taking into account stakeholder and business considerations. When measuring environmental liabilities, we also consider our prior experience in remediation of contaminated sites, other companies' cleanup experience, and data released by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency or other organizations. We consider unasserted claims in our determination of environmental liabilities, and we accrue them in the period they are both probable and reasonably estimable.

In the future, we may be involved in additional environmental assessments, cleanups and proceedings.

# Legal Proceedings

Under our amended omnibus agreement, Phillips 66 provides certain services for our benefit, including legal support services, and we pay an operational and administrative support fee for these services. Phillips 66's legal organization applies its knowledge, experience and professional judgment to the specific characteristics of our cases, employing a litigation management process to manage and monitor the legal proceedings against us. The process facilitates the early evaluation and quantification of potential exposures in individual cases and enables tracking of those cases that have been scheduled for trial and/or mediation. Based on professional judgment and experience in using these litigation management tools and available information about current developments in all our cases, Phillips 66's legal organization regularly assesses the adequacy of current accruals and determines if adjustment of existing accruals, or establishment of new accruals, is required. As of June 30, 2018, and December 31, 2017, we did not have any material accrued contingent liabilities associated with litigation matters.

Indemnification and Excluded Liabilities

Under our amended omnibus agreement and pursuant to the terms of various agreements under which we acquired assets from Phillips 66, Phillips 66 will indemnify us, or assume responsibility, for certain environmental liabilities, tax liabilities, litigation and any other liabilities attributable to the ownership or operation of the assets contributed to us and that arose prior to the effective date of each acquisition. These indemnifications and exclusions from liability have, in some cases, time limits, dollar limits and deductibles. When Phillips 66 performs under any of these indemnifications or exclusions from liability, we recognize noncash expenses and associated noncash capital contributions from our General Partner, as these are considered liabilities paid for by a principal unitholder.

19

#### **Table of Contents**

Note 12—Cash Flow Information

Capital Expenditures and Investments

Our capital expenditures and investments consisted of:

Millions of Dollars Six Months Ended June 30 2018 2017\*

Cash capital expenditures and investments \$234188 Change in capital expenditure accruals 14 —

Total capital expenditures and investments \$248188

\*Prior-period financial information has been retrospectively adjusted for acquisitions of businesses under common control.

Millions of Dollars Six Months Ended June 30 2018 2017

Capital expenditures and investments attributable to the Partnership \$248 128
Capital expenditures and investments attributable to Predecessors\* — 60
Total capital expenditures and investments\* \$248 188

#### Restricted Cash

At June 30, 2018, and December 31, 2017, the Partnership did not have any restricted cash. The restrictions on the cash received in February 2017, as a result of the retrospective adjustment for the Bakken Pipeline/MSLP Acquisition, were fully removed in the second quarter of 2017 when MSLP's outstanding debt that contained lender restrictions on the use of cash was paid in full.

#### Note 13—Related Party Transactions

#### Commercial Agreements

We have entered into multiple commercial agreements with Phillips 66, including transportation services agreements, terminal services agreements, storage services agreements, stevedoring services agreements, a fractionation service agreement, tolling services agreements, and rail terminal services agreements. Under these long-term, fee-based agreements, we provide transportation, terminaling, storage, stevedoring, fractionation, processing, and rail terminal services to Phillips 66, and Phillips 66 commits to provide us with minimum volume commitments of crude oil, NGL, feedstock, and refined petroleum products or minimum monthly service fees. Under our transportation, processing,

<sup>\*</sup>Prior-period financial information has been retrospectively adjusted for acquisitions of businesses under common control.

and terminaling services agreements, if Phillips 66 fails to transport, throughput or store its minimum throughput volume, then Phillips 66 will pay us a deficiency payment based on the calculation described in the agreement.

# Amended and Restated Operational Services Agreement

Under our amended and restated operational services agreement, we reimburse Phillips 66 for providing certain operational services to us in support of our pipelines, terminaling, processing, and storage facilities. These services include routine and emergency maintenance and repair services, routine operational activities, routine administrative services, construction and related services and such other services as we and Phillips 66 may mutually agree upon from time to time.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### Amended Omnibus Agreement

The amended omnibus agreement addresses our payment of an operating and administrative support fee and our obligation to reimburse Phillips 66 for all other direct or allocated costs and expenses incurred by Phillips 66 in providing general and administrative services. Additionally, the omnibus agreement addresses Phillips 66's indemnification to us and our indemnification to Phillips 66 for certain environmental and other liabilities. Further, it addresses the granting of a license from Phillips 66 to us with respect to the use of certain Phillips 66 trademarks.

# Tax Sharing Agreement

Under our tax sharing agreement, we reimburse Phillips 66 for our share of state and local income and other taxes incurred by Phillips 66 due to our results of operations being included in a combined or consolidated tax return filed by Phillips 66. Any reimbursement is limited to the tax that we (and our subsidiaries) would have paid had we not been included in a combined group with Phillips 66. Phillips 66 may use its tax attributes to cause its combined or consolidated group to owe no tax; however, we would nevertheless reimburse Phillips 66 for the tax we would have owed, even though Phillips 66 had no cash expense for that period.

#### **Related Party Transactions**

Significant related party transactions included in our total costs and expenses were:

Millions of Dollars

Three Months Ended June 30
201&017\* 20182017\*

Operating and maintenance expenses \$5050 115 90 General and administrative expenses 15 17 30 33 Total \$6567 145 123

We pay Phillips 66 a monthly operational and administrative support fee under the terms of our amended omnibus agreement in the amount of \$8 million. The operational and administrative support fee is for the provision of certain services, including: logistical services; asset oversight, such as operational management and supervision; corporate engineering services, including asset integrity and regulatory services; business development services; executive services; financial and administrative services (including treasury and accounting); information technology; legal services; corporate health, safety and environmental services; facility services; human resources services; procurement services; investor relations; tax matters; and public company reporting services. We also reimburse Phillips 66 for all other direct or allocated costs incurred on behalf of us, pursuant to the terms of our amended omnibus agreement. The classification of these charges between operating and maintenance expenses and general and administrative expenses is based on the functional nature of the services performed for our operations. Under our amended and restated operational services agreement, we reimburse Phillips 66 for the provision of certain operational services to us in support of our pipeline, rail rack, processing, terminaling, and storage facilities. Additionally, we pay Phillips 66 for insurance services provided to us. Operating and maintenance expenses also include volumetric gains and losses associated with volumes transported by Phillips 66.

<sup>\*</sup>Prior-period financial information has been retrospectively adjusted for acquisitions of businesses under common control.

#### **Table of Contents**

Other related party balances in our consolidated balance sheet consisted of the following, all of which were related to Phillips 66:

Millions of Dollars

Junder 31

2028017

Deferred rentals and other assets \$55 Deferred revenues 60 33 Deferred revenues and other liabilities 17 61

#### Equity Affiliate Guarantee

Dakota Access and ETCO are parties to a \$2.5 billion project financing transaction entered into in August 2016 to fund the construction of the Bakken Pipeline. In July 2017, as an owner of Dakota Access and ETCO, Phillips 66 and its co-venturers each issued a guarantee intended to cover their pro rata shares of interest expense for rolling six-month periods after the calculation date. In October 2017, as part of the Bakken Pipeline/MSLP Acquisition, Phillips 66 Partners substituted its guarantee for that of Phillips 66. Each co-venturer's guarantee has a maximum guarantee amount which changes over time. Our maximum exposure under the guarantee amounted to \$16 million at June 30, 2018.

# Note 14—New Accounting Standards

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, "Leases (Topic 842)." The new standard establishes a right-of-use (ROU) model that requires a lessee to record a ROU asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with terms longer than 12 months. Leases will continue to be classified as either financing or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the income statement. Similarly, lessors will be required to classify leases as sales-type, financing or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of income recognition in the income statement. Classification for both lessees and lessors will be based on an assessment of whether risks and rewards, as well as substantive control have been transferred through a lease contract. Public business entities should apply the guidance in ASU No. 2016-02 for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those annual periods. Early adoption is permitted. Entities are required to adopt the ASU using a modified retrospective approach, subject to certain optional practical expedients, and apply its provisions to leasing arrangements existing at or entered into after the earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements. We are currently evaluating the provisions of ASU No. 2016-02 and assessing its impact on our consolidated financial statements. As part of our assessment to-date, we have formed an implementation team, selected a software package, and completed software design and configuration within a test environment.

#### **Table of Contents**

# $$\operatorname{Item} 2$.$ MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Unless otherwise stated or the context otherwise indicates, all references to "Phillips 66 Partners," "the Partnership," "us," "our," "we" or similar expressions refer to Phillips 66 Partners LP, including its consolidated subsidiaries. References to Phillips 66 may refer to Phillips 66 and/or its subsidiaries, depending on the context. References to our "General Partner" refer to Phillips 66 Partners GP LLC, and references to Phillips 66 PDI refer to Phillips 66 Project Development Inc., the Phillips 66 subsidiary that holds a limited partner interest in us and wholly owns our General Partner.

Management's Discussion and Analysis is the Partnership's analysis of its financial performance and of significant trends that may affect future performance. It should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this report. It contains forward-looking statements including, without limitation, statements relating to the Partnership's plans, strategies, objectives, expectations and intentions. The words "anticipate," "estimate," "believe," "budget," "continue," "could," "intend," "may," "plan," "potential," "predict," "seek," "show "expect," "objective," "projection," "forecast," "goal," "guidance," "outlook," "effort," "target" and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. The Partnership does not undertake to update, revise or correct any of the forward-looking information unless required to do so under the federal securities laws. Readers are cautioned that such forward-looking statements should be read in conjunction with the Partnership's disclosures under the heading: "CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS."

#### BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT AND EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

#### Partnership Overview

We are a growth-oriented master limited partnership formed to own, operate, develop and acquire primarily fee-based crude oil, refined petroleum products and natural gas liquids (NGL) pipelines and terminals, and other midstream assets. Our common units trade on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol PSXP.

Our operations consist of crude oil, refined petroleum products and NGL transportation, processing, terminaling and storage assets. We conduct our operations through both wholly owned and joint venture operations. The majority of our wholly owned assets are associated with, and are integral to the operation of, nine of Phillips 66's owned or joint venture refineries.

We primarily generate revenue by providing fee-based transportation, processing, terminaling, storage and NGL fractionation services to Phillips 66 and other customers. Our equity affiliates primarily generate revenue from transporting and terminaling NGL, refined petroleum products and crude oil.

### **Basis of Presentation**

We have acquired assets from Phillips 66 that were considered transfers of businesses between entities under common control. This required the transactions to be accounted for as if the transfers had occurred at the beginning of the transfer period, with prior periods retrospectively adjusted to furnish comparative information. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements and related notes have been retrospectively adjusted to include the historical results and financial position of the acquired businesses prior to the effective date of each acquisition. We refer to these pre-acquisition operations as those of our "Predecessors."

See the "Basis of Presentation" section of Note 1—Business and Basis of Presentation, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, for additional information on the content and comparability of our historical financial statements.

# How We Evaluate Our Operations

Our management uses a variety of financial and operating metrics to analyze our performance, including: (1) volumes handled (including pipeline throughput, terminaling throughput and storage volumes); (2) operating and maintenance expenses; (3) net income (loss) before net interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA); (4) adjusted EBITDA; and (5) distributable cash flow.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### Volumes Handled

The amount of revenues we generate primarily depends on the volumes of crude oil, refined petroleum products and NGL that we handle in our pipeline, terminal, rail rack, processing, storage and NGL fractionator systems. In addition, our equity affiliates generate revenues from transporting and terminaling NGL, crude oil and refined petroleum products. These volumes are primarily affected by the supply of, and demand for, NGL, crude oil and refined petroleum products in the markets served directly or indirectly by our assets, as well as the operational status of the refineries served by our assets. Phillips 66 has committed to minimum throughput volumes under many of our commercial agreements.

# Operating and Maintenance Expenses

Our management seeks to maximize the profitability of our operations by effectively managing operating and maintenance expenses. These expenses primarily consist of labor expenses (including contractor services), utility costs, and repair and maintenance expenses. Operating and maintenance expenses generally remain relatively stable across broad ranges of throughput volumes but can fluctuate from period to period depending on the mix of activities, particularly maintenance activities, performed during the period.

Our operating and maintenance expenses are also affected by volumetric gains/losses resulting from variances in meter readings and other measurement methods, as well as volume fluctuations due to pressure and temperature changes. Under certain commercial agreements with Phillips 66, the value of any NGL, crude oil, or refined petroleum product volumetric gains and losses are determined by reference to the monthly average reference price for the applicable commodity. Any gains and losses under these provisions decrease or increase, respectively, our operating and maintenance expenses in the period in which they are realized. These contractual volumetric gain/loss provisions could increase variability in our operating and maintenance expenses.

#### EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flow

We define EBITDA as net income (loss) plus net interest expense, income taxes, and depreciation and amortization attributable to both the Partnership and our Predecessors.

Adjusted EBITDA is the EBITDA directly attributable to the Partnership after deducting the EBITDA attributable to our Predecessors, further adjusted for:

The proportional share of equity affiliates' net interest expense, income taxes and depreciation and amortization.

Transaction costs associated with acquisitions.

Certain other noncash items, including expenses indemnified by Phillips 66.

Distributable cash flow is defined as adjusted EBITDA less (i) the difference between equity affiliate distributions and proportional EBITDA, (ii) maintenance capital expenditures, (iii) net interest expense, (iv) income taxes paid and (v) preferred unit distributions; plus adjustments for deferred revenue impacts.

EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, and distributable cash flow are not presentations made in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow are non-GAAP supplemental financial measures that management believes external users of our consolidated financial statements, such as industry analysts, investors, lenders and rating agencies, may find useful to assess:

Our operating performance as compared to other publicly traded partnerships in the midstream energy industry, without regard to historical cost basis or, in the case of EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA, financing methods.

The ability of our business to generate sufficient cash to support our decision to make distributions to our unitholders. Our ability to incur and service debt and fund capital expenditures.

The viability of acquisitions and other capital expenditure projects and the returns on investment of various investment opportunities.

#### **Table of Contents**

The GAAP performance measure most directly comparable to EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA is net income. The GAAP liquidity measure most directly comparable to EBITDA and distributable cash flow is net cash provided by operating activities. These non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered alternatives to GAAP net income or net cash provided by operating activities. They have important limitations as analytical tools because they exclude some items that affect net income and net cash provided by operating activities. Additionally, because EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, and distributable cash flow may be defined differently by other companies in our industry, our definition of these non-GAAP financial measures may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies, thereby diminishing their utility.

#### **Business Environment**

Since we do not own any of the NGL, crude oil and refined petroleum products we handle and do not engage in the trading of NGL, crude oil and refined petroleum products, we have limited direct exposure to risks associated with fluctuating commodity prices, although these risks indirectly influence our activities and results of operations over the long term.

Our throughput volumes primarily depend on the volume of crude oil processed and refined petroleum products produced at Phillips 66's owned or operated refineries with which our assets are integrated, which in turn are primarily dependent on Phillips 66's refining margins and maintenance schedules. Refining margins depend on the cost of crude oil or other feedstocks and the price of refined petroleum products. These prices are affected by numerous factors beyond our or Phillips 66's control, including the domestic and global supply of and demand for crude oil and refined petroleum products. Throughput volumes of our equity affiliates primarily depend on upstream drilling activities, refinery performance and product supply and demand.

While we believe we have substantially mitigated our indirect exposure to commodity price fluctuations through the minimum volume commitments in our commercial agreements with Phillips 66 during the respective terms of those agreements, our ability to execute our growth strategy in our areas of operation will depend, in part, on the availability of attractively priced crude oil in the areas served by our crude oil pipelines and rail racks, demand for refined petroleum products in the markets served by our refined petroleum product pipelines and terminals, and the general demand for midstream services, including NGL transportation and fractionation.

# **Table of Contents**

# **RESULTS OF OPERATIONS**

Unless otherwise indicated, discussion of results for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, is based on a comparison with the respective corresponding periods of 2017.

	Months Ended		Six Months Ended June 30	
Revenues and Other Income				
Operating revenues—related parties	\$244	4216	493	426
Operating revenues—third parties	10	11	17	21
Equity in earnings of affiliates	100	48	198	81
Other income	—	2	1	11
Total revenues and other income	354	277	709	539
Costs and Expenses				
Operating and maintenance expenses	85	79		153
Depreciation	29	28	57	56
General and administrative expenses	16	18	32	35
Taxes other than income taxes	9	8	19	17
Interest and debt expense	29	24	59	48
Total costs and expenses	168	157	349	309
Income before income taxes	186	120	360	230
Income tax expense		1	2	1
Net income	186	119	358	229
Less: Net income attributable to Predecessors		16		29
Net income attributable to the Partnership	186	103	358	200
Less: Preferred unitholders' interest in net income attributable to the Partnership	10		19	
Less: General partner's interest in net income attributable to the Partnership	55	37	108	69
Limited partners' interest in net income attributable to the Partnership	\$12	166	231	131
Net cash provided by operating activities	\$220	5136	397	291
Adjusted EBITDA	\$270	6166	523	329
Distributable cash flow *Prior period financial information has been retreated to a consist.		4140		264

<sup>\*</sup>Prior-period financial information has been retrospectively adjusted for acquisitions of businesses under common control.

# **Table of Contents**

	Three Mont Ende June	ths d	Six M Ende June	
	2018	2017	2018	2017
Wholly Owned Operating Data				
Pipelines				
Pipeline revenues (millions of dollars)	\$111	103	213	205
Pipeline volumes <sup>(1)</sup> (thousands of barrels daily)				
Crude oil	1,020	871	984	873
Refined products and NGL	920	973	859	953
Total	1,940	1,844	1,843	31,826
Average pipeline revenue per barrel (dollars)	\$0.63	30.61	0.64	0.62
Terminals				
Terminal revenues (millions of dollars)	\$38	37	77	74
Terminal throughput (thousands of barrels daily)				
Crude oil <sup>(2)</sup>	471	374	477	369
Refined products	806	742	763	772
Total	1,277	71,116	1,240	01,141
Average terminaling revenue per barrel (dollars)	\$0.33	30.36	0.34	0.36
Storage, processing and other revenues (millions of dollars)	\$105	87	220	168
Total operating revenues (millions of dollars)	\$254	227	510	447

# Joint Venture Operating Data<sup>(3)</sup>

Crude oil, refined products and NGL (thousands of barrels daily) 638 443 621 397

<sup>(1)</sup> Represents the sum of volumes transported through each separately tariffed pipeline segment.

<sup>(2)</sup> Bayway and Ferndale rail rack volumes included in crude oil terminals.

<sup>(3)</sup> Proportional share of total pipeline and terminal volumes of joint ventures consistent with recognized equity in earnings of affiliates.

# **Table of Contents**

The following tables present reconciliations of EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA to net income and EBITDA and distributable cash flow to net cash provided by operating activities, the most directly comparable GAAP financial measures, for each of the periods indicated.

	Millions of Dollars			
	Months Ended		Six Months Ended June 30	
	2018	2017*	2018	32017*
Reconciliation to Net Income Attributable to the Partnership				
Net income attributable to the Partnership	\$186	103	358	200
Plus:				
Net income attributable to the Predecessors	_	16	—	29
Net income	186	119	358	229
Plus:				
Depreciation	29	28	57	56
Net interest expense	29	23	58	46
Income tax expense	_	1	2	1
EBITDA	244	171	475	332
Plus:				
Proportional share of equity affiliates' net interest, taxes and depreciation	28	12	43	24
Expenses indemnified or prefunded by Phillips 66	1		1	3
Transaction costs associated with acquisitions	3	_	4	1
Less:				
EBITDA attributable to Predecessors	_	17	—	31
Adjusted EBITDA	276	166	523	329
Plus:				
Deferred revenue impacts**†	(5	)4	—	8
Less:				
Equity affiliate distributions less than (more than) proportional EBITDA	18	(4)	28	4
Maintenance capital expenditures <sup>†</sup>	10	10	20	21
Net interest expense	29	24	58	48
Preferred unit distributions	10	_	19	_
Distributable cash flow	\$204	140	398	264

<sup>\*</sup>Prior-period financial information has been retrospectively adjusted for acquisitions of businesses under common control.

<sup>\*\*</sup>Difference between cash receipts and revenue recognition.

<sup>†</sup>Excludes MSLP capital reimbursements and turnaround impacts.

#### **Table of Contents**

	Millions of Dollars					
	Months Ended Er		End	Six Months Ended June 30		
	2018	2017*	201	82017*	s	
Reconciliation to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities						
Net cash provided by operating activities	\$226	136	397	291		
Plus:						
Net interest expense	29	23	58	46		
Income tax expense		1	2	1		
Changes in working capital	(10	)8	(27	)(11	)	
Undistributed equity earnings	(1	)5	7	9		
Deferred revenues and other liabilities	5		43			
Other	(5	)(2)	(5	)(4	)	
EBITDA	244	171	475	332		
Plus:						
Proportional share of equity affiliates' net interest, taxes and depreciation	28	12	43	24		
Expenses indemnified or prefunded by Phillips 66	1		1	3		
Transaction costs associated with acquisitions	3		4	1		
Less:						
EBITDA attributable to Predecessors	_	17		31		
Adjusted EBITDA	276	166	523	329		
Plus:						
Deferred revenue impacts**†	(5	)4	_	8		
Less:						
Equity affiliate distributions less than (more than) proportional EBITDA	18	(4)	28	4		
Maintenance capital expenditures <sup>†</sup>	10	10	20	21		
Net interest expense	29	24	58	48		
Preferred unit distributions	10	_	19			
Distributable cash flow	\$204	140	398	264		

<sup>\*</sup>Prior-period financial information has been retrospectively adjusted for acquisitions of businesses under common control.

Excludes MSLP capital reimbursements and turnaround impacts.

# Statement of Income Analysis

Operating revenues increased \$27 million, or 12 percent, and \$63 million, or 14 percent, in the second quarter and six-month period of 2018, respectively. The increases were primarily related to additional revenues from the acquisition of Merey Sweeny, L.P. (MSLP) in 2017 and higher pipeline and terminal volumes.

Equity in earnings of affiliates increased \$52 million and \$117 million in the second quarter and six-month period of 2018, respectively. The increases were primarily attributable to Dakota Access, LLC and Energy Transfer Crude Oil Company, LLC (together, the Bakken Pipeline), which began operations in June 2017. The increases also reflected higher earnings from Sand Hills Pipeline, LLC (Sand Hills) and Phillips 66 Partners Terminal LLC due to higher volumes, and Explorer Pipeline Company due to a one-time benefit from U.S. tax reform.

<sup>\*\*</sup>Difference between cash receipts and revenue recognition.

Other Income decreased \$10 million in the six-month period of 2018. The decrease was primarily due to the receipt of tax-related contractual make-whole payments in the first quarter of 2017, associated with the transfer of a co-venturer's interests in Sand Hills and DCP Southern Hills Pipeline, LLC to DCP Midstream, LP.

#### **Table of Contents**

Operating and maintenance expenses increased by \$6 million, or 8 percent, and \$29 million, or 19 percent, in the second quarter and six-month period of 2018, respectively. The increases were primarily due to operating expenses associated with the acquisition of MSLP in 2017, as well as increased maintenance expense for the River Parish NGL system.

Interest and debt expense increased \$5 million, or 21 percent, and \$11 million, or 23 percent in the second quarter and six-month period of 2018, respectively, primarily due to higher average debt principal balances as a result of the issuance of \$650 million in aggregate principal amount of senior notes in October 2017.

# CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

# Significant Sources of Capital

Our sources of liquidity include cash generated from operations, borrowings from related parties and under our revolving credit facility, and issuances of additional debt and equity securities. We believe that cash generated from these sources will be sufficient to meet our short-term working capital requirements, long-term capital expenditure requirements and our quarterly cash distributions.

#### **Operating Activities**

We generated \$397 million in cash from operations during the first six months of 2018, an improvement over cash from operations of \$291 million for the corresponding period of 2017. The improvement was primarily driven by higher distributions from equity affiliates, partially offset by higher operating and maintenance expenses.

#### **ATM Programs**

Our initial \$250 million continuous offering of common units, or at-the-market (ATM) program, was completed during the three months ended June 30, 2018. At that time, we commenced issuing common units under our second \$250 million ATM program. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, on a settlement date basis, we had issued an aggregate of 1,152,119 and 1,340,934 common units under our ATM programs, generating net proceeds of \$58 million and \$67 million, respectively. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2017, on a settlement date basis, we had issued an aggregate of 2,578,608 and 3,323,576 common units under our ATM programs, generating net proceeds of \$131 million and \$171 million, respectively. Since inception through June 30, 2018, we had issued an aggregate of 5,059,802 common units under our ATM programs, generating net proceeds of \$259 million, after broker commissions of \$3 million. The net proceeds from sales under the ATM programs are used for general partnership purposes, which may include debt repayment, acquisitions, capital expenditures and additions to working capital.

# **Revolving Credit Facility**

At June 30, 2018, and December 31, 2017, we had no borrowings outstanding under our \$750 million revolving credit facility.

### **Shelf Registration**

We have a universal shelf registration statement on file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under which we, as a well-known seasoned issuer, have the ability to issue and sell an indeterminate amount of common units representing limited partner interests, preferred units representing limited partner interests, and debt securities.

#### **Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements**

Dakota Access, LLC (Dakota Access) and Energy Transfer Crude Oil Company, LLC (ETCO) are parties to a \$2.5 billion project financing transaction entered into in August 2016. In July 2017, as an owner of Dakota Access and ETCO, Phillips 66 and its co-venturers each issued a guarantee intended to cover their pro rata shares of interest expense for rolling six-month periods after the calculation date. In October 2017, as part of the Bakken

Pipeline/MSLP Acquisition, Phillips 66 Partners substituted its guarantee for that of Phillips 66. Each co-venturer's guarantee has a maximum guarantee amount which changes over time. Our maximum exposure under the guarantee amounted to \$16 million at June 30, 2018.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### Capital Requirements

## Capital Expenditures and Investments

Our operations can be capital intensive, requiring investments to expand, upgrade, maintain or enhance existing operations and to meet environmental and operational requirements of our wholly owned and joint venture entities. Our capital requirements consist of maintenance and expansion capital expenditures, as well as contributions to our joint ventures. Examples of maintenance capital expenditures are those made to replace partially or fully depreciated assets, to maintain the existing operating capacity of our assets and to extend their useful lives, or to maintain existing system volumes and related cash flows. In contrast, expansion capital expenditures are those made to expand and upgrade our systems and facilities and to construct or acquire new systems or facilities to grow our business, including contributions to joint ventures that are using the contributed funds for such purposes.

Our capital expenditures and investments were:

Millions of Dollars Six Months Ended June 30 2018 2017

Capital expenditures and investments attributable to the Partnership

Expansion	\$226	5107
Maintenance	22	21
Total	248	128
Capital expenditures attributable to Predecessors*		60
Total capital expenditures and investments*	\$248	3188

<sup>\*</sup>Prior-period financial information has been retrospectively adjusted for acquisitions of businesses under common control.

Our capital expenditures and investments for the first six months of 2018 were \$248 million, primarily associated with the following activities:

Contributions to Bayou Bridge Pipeline, LLC to continue progress on its pipeline segment from Lake Charles, Louisiana, to St. James, Louisiana.

Contributions to Sand Hills to increase capacity on its NGL pipeline system.

Construction of a new isomerization unit at the Phillips 66 Lake Charles Refinery.

Contributions to Gray Oak to begin construction of the pipeline to transport crude oil from the Permian Basin and Eagle Ford to destinations in the Corpus Christi and Sweeny/Freeport markets on the Texas Gulf Coast.

Acquisition of a 25 percent interest in South Texas Gateway Terminal, which is under development by Buckeye Partners, L.P.

Increasing storage capacity at Clemens Caverns.

Spending associated with reliability and maintenance projects at MSLP.

In April 2018, the Board of Directors of our General Partner approved an increase in our capital expenditures and investments budget for the year ending December 31, 2018, from \$595 million to \$750 million.

#### **Table of Contents**

In April 2018, we announced that we have received sufficient binding commitments to proceed with construction of the Gray Oak Pipeline. The pipeline will provide crude oil transportation from the Permian Basin and Eagle Ford to destinations in the Corpus Christi and Sweeny/Freeport markets on the Texas Gulf Coast, including the Phillips 66 Sweeny Refinery. In July 2018, we completed the expansion open season to determine the scope and capacity of the pipeline system. The pipeline will have an initial capacity of 800,000 barrels per day (BPD) based on shipper commitments of 700,000 BPD and the reservation of capacity for walk-up shippers. The pipeline is expandable to approximately 1 million BPD subject to additional shipper commitments. We currently own a 75 percent interest in the pipeline system, and other third parties have options to acquire up to a 32.75 percent interest. If all options are exercised, we would own 42.25 percent. The pipeline is expected to be in service by the end of 2019, with total cost of approximately \$2 billion on a 100 percent basis.

In Corpus Christi, Texas, the Gray Oak Pipeline will connect to the new South Texas Gateway Terminal under development by Buckeye Partners, L.P. The marine terminal will have an initial storage capacity of 3.4 million barrels and is expected to begin operations by the end of 2019. We own a 25 percent interest in the joint venture that is constructing the terminal.

#### **Cash Distributions**

On July 18, 2018, the Board of Directors of our General Partner declared a quarterly cash distribution of \$0.752 per common unit payable on August 13, 2018, to unitholders of record as of July 31, 2018. The Board also approved the quarterly distribution to our preferred unitholders, to be paid in cash on August 13, 2018, to preferred unitholders of record as of July 31, 2018. Total cash distributions to be paid on August 13, 2018, to all unitholders and our General Partner (including its incentive distribution rights (IDRs)) will be \$158 million.

Cash distributions are made to our General Partner in respect of its general partner interest and its ownership of all IDRs, which entitle our General Partner to receive increasing percentages, up to 50 percent, of quarterly cash distributions in excess of \$0.244375 per unit. Accordingly, based on the per-unit distribution declared on July 18, 2018, our General Partner will receive 39 percent of the second-quarter 2018 cash distribution, excluding preferred unit distributions, in respect of its general partner interest and its ownership of all IDRs.

The holders of our preferred units are entitled to receive cumulative quarterly distributions equal to \$0.678375 per preferred unit. Preferred unitholders received \$9 million of distributions in the second quarter of 2018 that were attributable to the first quarter of 2018.

#### Contingencies

From time to time, lawsuits involving a variety of claims that arise in the ordinary course of business are filed against us. We also may be required to remove or mitigate the effects on the environment of the placement, storage, disposal or release of certain chemical, mineral and petroleum substances at various sites. We regularly assess the need for accounting recognition or disclosure of these contingencies. In the case of all known contingencies (other than those related to income taxes), we accrue a liability when the loss is probable and the amount is reasonably estimable. If a range of amounts can be reasonably estimated and no amount within the range is a better estimate than any other amount, then the minimum of the range is accrued. We do not reduce these liabilities for potential insurance or third-party recoveries. If applicable, we accrue receivables for probable insurance or other third-party recoveries. In the case of income-tax-related contingencies, we use a cumulative probability-weighted loss accrual in cases where sustaining a tax position is less than certain.

Based on currently available information, we believe it is remote that future costs related to known contingent liability exposures will exceed current accruals by an amount that would have a material adverse impact on our consolidated financial statements. As we learn new facts concerning contingencies, we reassess our position both with respect to accrued liabilities and other potential exposures. Estimates particularly sensitive to future changes include any

contingent liabilities recorded for environmental remediation, tax and legal matters. Estimated future environmental remediation costs are subject to change due to such factors as the uncertain magnitude of cleanup costs, the unknown time and extent of such remedial actions that may be required, and the determination of our liability in proportion to that of other potentially responsible parties. Estimated future costs related to tax and legal matters are subject to change as events evolve and as additional information becomes available during the administrative and litigation processes.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### Regulatory Matters

Our interstate common carrier crude oil and refined petroleum products pipeline operations are subject to rate regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission under the Interstate Commerce Act and Energy Policy Act of 1992, and certain of our pipeline systems providing intrastate service are subject to rate regulation by applicable state authorities under their respective laws and regulations. Our pipeline, rail rack and terminal operations are also subject to safety regulations adopted by the Department of Transportation, as well as to state regulations.

#### Legal and Tax Matters

Under our amended omnibus agreement, Phillips 66 provides certain services for our benefit, including legal and tax support services, and we pay an operational and administrative support fee for these services. Phillips 66's legal and tax organizations apply their knowledge, experience and professional judgment to the specific characteristics of our cases and uncertain tax positions. Phillips 66's legal organization employs a litigation management process to manage and monitor the legal proceedings against us. The process facilitates the early evaluation and quantification of potential exposures in individual cases and enables tracking of those cases that have been scheduled for trial and/or mediation. Based on professional judgment and experience in using these litigation management tools and available information about current developments in all our cases, Phillips 66's legal organization regularly assesses the adequacy of current accruals and recommends if adjustment of existing accruals, or establishment of new accruals, is required. As of June 30, 2018, and December 31, 2017, we did not have any material accrued contingent liabilities associated with litigation matters.

#### Environmental

We are subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations. These requirements, which frequently change, regulate the discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relate to protection of the environment. Compliance with these laws and regulations may require us to remediate environmental damage from any discharge of petroleum or chemical substances from our facilities or require us to install additional pollution control equipment at or on our facilities. Our failure to comply with these or any other environmental or safety-related regulations could result in the assessment of administrative, civil, or criminal penalties, the imposition of investigatory and remedial liabilities, and the issuance of governmental orders that may subject us to additional operational constraints. Future expenditures may be required to comply with the Federal Clean Air Act and other federal, state and local requirements in respect of our various sites, including our pipelines and storage assets. The impact of legislative and regulatory developments, if enacted or adopted, could result in increased compliance costs and additional operating restrictions on our business, each of which could have an adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations and liquidity.

As with all costs, if these expenditures are not ultimately reflected in the tariffs and other fees we receive for our services, our operating results will be adversely affected. We believe that substantially all similarly situated parties and holders of comparable assets must comply with similar environmental laws and regulations. However, the specific impact on each may vary depending on a number of factors, including, but not limited to, the age and location of its operating facilities.

We accrue for environmental remediation activities when the responsibility to remediate is probable and the amount of associated costs can be reasonably estimated. As environmental remediation matters proceed toward ultimate resolution or as additional remediation obligations arise, charges in excess of those previously accrued may be required. New or expanded environmental requirements, which could increase our environmental costs, may arise in the future. We believe we are in substantial compliance with all legal obligations regarding the environment and have established the environmental accruals that are currently required; however, it is not possible to predict all of the ultimate costs of compliance, including remediation costs that may be incurred and penalties that may be imposed, because not all of the costs are fixed or presently determinable (even under existing legislation) and the costs may be affected by future legislation or regulations.

# Paradis Pipeline Station Incident

On February 9, 2017, a fire occurred at the Paradis Pipeline Station on the River Parish NGL System. There was one Phillips 66 employee fatality and three contractors were injured. All regulatory agency investigations have been completed, except one outstanding item with the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality. We do not currently expect claims related to this incident, individually or in the aggregate, to have a material impact on our results of operations.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### Indemnification and Excluded Liabilities

Under our amended omnibus agreement and pursuant to the terms of various agreements under which we acquired assets from Phillips 66, Phillips 66 will indemnify us, or assume responsibility, for certain environmental liabilities, tax liabilities, litigation and any other liabilities attributable to the ownership or operation of the assets contributed to us and that arose prior to the effective date of each acquisition. These indemnifications and exclusions from liability have, in some cases, time limits, dollar limits and deductibles. When Phillips 66 performs under any of these indemnifications or exclusions from liability, we recognize noncash expenses and associated noncash capital contributions from our General Partner, as these are considered liabilities paid for by a principal unitholder.

#### **NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS**

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02, "Leases (Topic 842)." The new standard establishes a right-of-use (ROU) model that requires a lessee to record a ROU asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with terms longer than 12 months. Leases will continue to be classified as either financing or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the income statement. Similarly, lessors will be required to classify leases as sales-type, financing or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of income recognition in the income statement. Classification for both lessees and lessors will be based on an assessment of whether risks and rewards, as well as substantive control have been transferred through a lease contract. Public business entities should apply the guidance in ASU No. 2016-02 for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those annual periods. Early adoption is permitted. Entities are required to adopt the ASU using a modified retrospective approach, subject to certain optional practical expedients, and apply its provisions to leasing arrangements existing at or entered into after the earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements. We are currently evaluating the provisions of ASU No. 2016-02 and assessing its impact on our consolidated financial statements. As part of our assessment to-date, we have formed an implementation team, selected a software package, and completed software design and configuration within a test environment.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report includes forward-looking statements. You can identify our forward-looking statements by the words "anticipate," "estimate," "believe," "budget," "continue," "could," "intend," "may," "plan," "potential," "predict," "seek," "sho "expect," "objective," "projection," "forecast," "goal," "guidance," "outlook," "effort," "target" and similar expressions.

We based the forward-looking statements on our current expectations, estimates and projections about us and the industries in which we operate in general. We caution you these statements are not guarantees of future performance as they involve assumptions that, while made in good faith, may prove to be incorrect, and involve risks and uncertainties we cannot predict. In addition, we based many of these forward-looking statements on assumptions about future events that may prove to be inaccurate. Accordingly, our actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what we have expressed or forecast in the forward-looking statements. Any differences could result from a variety of factors, including the following:

The continued ability of Phillips 66 to satisfy its obligations under our commercial and other agreements. Reductions in the volume of crude oil, NGL and refined petroleum products we transport, fractionate, process, terminal and store.

Changes to the tariff rates with respect to volumes that we transport through our regulated assets, which rates are subject to review and possible adjustment by federal and state regulators.

Changes in revenue we realize under the loss allowance provisions of our regulated tariffs resulting from changes in underlying commodity prices.

Fluctuations in the prices and demand for crude oil, NGL and refined petroleum products.

Changes in global economic conditions and the effects of a global economic downturn on the business of Phillips 66 and the business of its suppliers, customers, business partners and credit lenders.

Potential liabilities associated with the risks and operational hazards inherent in transporting, fractionating, processing, terminaling and storing crude oil, NGL and refined petroleum products.

Curtailment of operations due to severe weather disruption or natural disasters; riots, strikes, lockouts or other industrial disturbances; or failure of information technology systems due to various causes, including unauthorized access or attack.

• Accidents or other unscheduled shutdowns affecting our pipelines, processing, fractionating, terminaling, and storage facilities or equipment, or those of our suppliers or customers.

Our inability to obtain or maintain permits in a timely manner, if at all, including those necessary for capital projects, or the revocation or modification of existing permits.

Our inability to comply with government regulations or make capital expenditures required to maintain compliance.

The failure to complete construction of announced and future capital projects in a timely manner and any cost overruns associated with such projects.

Our ability to successfully execute growth strategies, whether through organic growth or acquisitions.

The operation, financing and distribution decisions of our joint ventures.

• Costs or liabilities associated with federal, state, and local laws and regulations relating to environmental protection and safety, including spills, releases and pipeline integrity.

Costs associated with compliance with evolving environmental laws and regulations on climate change.

Costs associated with compliance with safety regulations, including pipeline integrity management program testing and related repairs.

Changes in the cost or availability of third-party vessels, pipelines, railcars and other means of delivering and transporting crude oil, NGL and refined petroleum products.

Direct or indirect effects on our business resulting from actual or threatened terrorist incidents or acts of war. Our ability to comply with the terms of our credit facility, indebtedness and other financing arrangements, which, if accelerated, we may not be able to repay.

•

Our ability to incur additional indebtedness or our ability to obtain financing on terms that we deem acceptable, including the refinancing of our current obligations; higher interest rates and costs of financing would increase our expenses.

Changes in tax, environmental and other laws and regulations.

The factors generally described in "Item 1A. Risk Factors" in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 23, 2018.

#### **Table of Contents**

# Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our commodity price risk and interest rate risk at June 30, 2018, did not differ materially from that disclosed under Item 7A of our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

## Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Act), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our General Partner's management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. As of June 30, 2018, our General Partner's Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and its Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, with the participation of the General Partner's management, carried out an evaluation, pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) of the Act, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Act). Based upon that evaluation, our General Partner's Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and its Vice President and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were operating effectively as of June 30, 2018.

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Act, in the quarterly period ended June 30, 2018, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

#### Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Under our amended omnibus agreement, and pursuant to the terms of various agreements under which we acquired assets from Phillips 66, Phillips 66 indemnifies us or assumes responsibility for certain liabilities relating to litigation and environmental matters attributable to the ownership or operation of our assets prior to their contribution to us from Phillips 66. See Note 11—Contingencies, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, for additional information.

The following is a description of reportable legal proceedings attributable to the ownership or operation of our assets, including those involving governmental authorities under federal, state and local laws regulating the discharge of materials into the environment, for this reporting period. There were material developments that occurred with respect to the matter previously reported in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2018. No such matters were previously reported in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

#### New Matters

There are no new matters to report.

# Matters Previously Reported

In March 2018, Phillips 66 Partners received notification from the Illinois Attorney General's office of a proposed penalty arising from the April 2015 release of approximately 800 barrels of diesel fuel from our pipeline that transports products from a terminal in Hartford, Illinois, to a dock on the Mississippi River. This matter has been resolved with a penalty payment of \$120,000.

#### Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes from the risk factors disclosed under Item 1A of our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

# Table of Contents

Item 6. EXH	IBITS
Exhibit Number	Exhibit Description
10.1*	First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Operational Services Agreement, dated as of May 30, 2018, by and among Phillips 66 Carrier LLC, Phillips 66 Partners Holdings LLC, and Phillips 66 Pipeline LLC.
<u>12*</u>	Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
31.1*	Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
31.2*	Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
<u>32*</u>	Certifications pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.
101.INS*	XBRL Instance Document.
101.SCH*	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
101.CAL*	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.
101.DEF*	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.
101.LAB*	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document.
101.PRE*	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.
* Filed herewith	
38	

# **Table of Contents**

## **SIGNATURES**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

# PHILLIPS 66 PARTNERS LP

By: Phillips 66 Partners GP LLC, its general partner

/s/ Chukwuemeka A. Oyolu Chukwuemeka A. Oyolu Vice President and Controller (Chief Accounting and Duly Authorized Officer)

Date: July 27, 2018